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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V.

SAMUEL CHAI CHO OH

Docket No.

IMAGISTRATE'S CASE NO.

SA09-530M

Complamt for ygolatnor\ of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371

» o5
NAME OF MA&IS “rE JU? TITLE LOCATION
M}\RC L. GﬁLBMﬁN l UNITED STATES Santa Ana, CA
e _ o= | MAGISTRATE JUDGE
C ot !
DAYE OF OFFENSE - | PLACE OF OFFENSE Address of ACCUSED (IF KNOWN)
May~1999 to @tober 18 2009 Orange County 905 S. Euclid Street, Fullerton, CA, 92832

COMPLAINANT'S STATEMENT OF FACTS CONSTITUTING THE OFFENSE OR VIOLATION:

Commencing on a date unknown, but in or around May 1999, and continuing to on or about October 18, 2009,
in Orange County, within the Central District of California, defendant SAMUEL CHAI CHO OH, together
with other persons, knowingly conspired and agreed to commit the following offense against the United States
in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371, and defendant OH and his co-conspirators committed
acts to effect the objects of the conspiracy: (a) subscribing as true, under penalty of perjury, a false statement
with respect to a material fact in documents required by United States immigration law and the regulations
prescribed thereunder; and (b) knowingly and willfully causing another person to present such other documents
containing such false statements to United States immigration officials, in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Sections 1546.

FILED - SOUTHERN DIVISION
CLERK, U.S. DISTRICT COURT

BASIS OF COMPLAINANT'S CHARGE AGAINST THE ACCUSED:

See attached affidavit which is incorporated as part of this Complaint.

86 2 | 2009

gENTﬂAL DisT, lca OF CALIFORNIA

DEP ST

MATERIAL WITNESS(ES) IN RELATION TO THIS CHARGE: Not Applicable T

Being duly sworn, I declare that the
foregoing is true and correct to the
best of my knowledge.

SIGNATURE OF COMPLAINANT

e

L

MARK SPEIDE
SPECIAL AGENT, IMMIGRATION & CUSTOMS
ENFORCEMENT

Sworn to befoyme and subscribed in my presence,

DATE
December 21, 2009
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AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

I, Mark Speidel, being duly sworn, declare as follows:

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE

1. I am a Special Agent (“SA”) with the Department of
Homeland Security, Immigration and Customs Enforcement (“ICE"),
and have been so employed since March 2003. Before my employment
with ICE, I was a SA with the United States Department of
Justice, Immigration and Naturalization Service (“INS”) from May
2002 until February 2003. Prior to my employment as a SA with
INS, T was an Immigration Inspector with INS from December 1997
to May 2002. As part of my basic training, I attended a 16-week
law enforcement training course at the Federal Law Enforcement
Training Center in Glynco, Georgia. I have received specialized
training in human trafficking, immigration document fraud, money
laundering, asset forfeiture, importation of narcotics, and
employer sanctions.

2. I am currently assigned to the National Security Unit
at the Office of the Assistant Special Agent in Charge, Orange
County, California. 1In my current assignment, I am charged with
investigating and enforcing the United States Code and
administrative provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act.
Since May 2002, I have personally conducted investigations
involving human trafficking and forced labor, counterfeit

identity documents, employer/worksite violations, and financial
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crimes related to money laundering and structuring. I have also
assisted in other investigations such as the importation and
possession of narcotics, arms and strategic technology,
intellectual property rights, and cyber crimes. 1In some of the
aforementioned investigations, I have served as the handling SA
for confidential informants and utilized them in investigations
that resulted in numerous Federal arrests and convictions.

PURPOSE OF AFFIDAVIT

3. This affidavit is made in support of a criminal
complaint and arrest warrant against SAMUEL CHAI CHO OH (“OH")
for knowingly conspiring and agreeing, together with other
persons, to commit the following offenses against the United
States in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371,
and OH and his co-conspirators committed acts to effect the
objects of the conspiracy: (a) subscribing as true, under penalty
of perjury, a false statement with respect to a material fact in
documents required by United States immigration law and the
regulations prescribed thereunder; and (b) knowingly and
willfully causing another person to present such other documents
containing such false statements to United States immigration
officials, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections
1546 (“the SUBJECT FEDERAL OFFENSE”).

4. This affidavit is submitted for the limited purpose of

establishing probable cause sufficient to obtain issuance of a
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criminal complaint and arrest warrant. I have not attempted,
therefore, to include each and every fact learned by me during
the course of this investigation.

PROBABLE CAUSE

A. Background Regarding Student Visa Fraud

5. Based upon my training, experience, and conversations
with other law enforcement officers that investigate immigration
fraud, I am aware of the following:

a. The United States requires individuals from most
foreign countries to obtain a visa prior to entry into the United
States. Immigrant visas are required for foreigners who intend
to immigrate to the United States and non-immigrant visas are
required for foreigners who intend to enter on a temporary basis
(such as for tourism, medical treatment, business, temporary
work, or study).

b. Foreigners entering the United States to attend
colleges, universities, seminaries, conservatories, academic high
schools, other academic institutions, and English language
training must first obtain an F-1 non-immigrant visa.

o Prior to obtaining an F-1 non-immigrant visa,
foreigners must apply to study at a United States government-
approved school in the United States. If accepted, the school
will provide to the foreign citizen a “Certificate of Eligibility

for Non-immigrant (F-1) Student Status - For Academic and
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Language Students” (Form I-20) that is used to obtain the non-
immigrant visa required to enter the United States. The Form I-
20 also certifies that the foreign citizen: (1) is a or is
expected to be a “bona fide” student; (2) meets admission
requirements; (3) will pursue a full course of study; and (4) has
provided proof that the foreign citizen will have the necessary
funds to live and study in the United States without working
illegally or suffering from poverty.

d. An F-1 non-immigrant student visa is valid for as long
as the foreigner is enrolled as a full-time student in an
educational program and making normal progress toward completion
of the course of study. Upon completion of the educational
program, foreign citizens must depart the United States within 60
days. Remaining in the United States beyond the authorized time
is a violation of United States immigration laws.

e. The school involved in this process has considerable
responsibility in the F-1 visa process. Once the school is an
approved school for admitting foreign students, the school is
responsible for issuing the Form I-20s (the certificate of
eligibility for academic study) to students it admits. 1In
issuing a Form I-20, the school is responsible for determining
that the student has the financial ability to attend the school.
Once the Form I-20 has been issued to the prospective Student,

the student can then go to a United States Embassy or consulate
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office in his or her own country to apply for an F-1 student
visa. F-1 student visas are ordinarily issued to students who
possess a Form I-20 by the approved educational institution. The
educational institution issues a computer-generated Form I-20 to
the prospective student. Once the prospective student receives
the F-1 visa from the Department of State, the student may enter
the United States just prior to the start of their academic
studies (no earlier than 30 days before the start of classes).
The student must then register for classes through the approved
school, and must attend at least 18 hours of classes per week.
Each approved school has a “Designated School Official” whose
responsibility it is to issue the computer-generated Form I-20s
to students who have been admitted for attendance at the school.
In addition, this designated official, or the primary school
official at each approved school, is responsible for entering
information into a computer database called the Student Exchange
Visitors Information System (“SEVIS”). Approved schools have
access to this SEVIS computer database and are required to
maintain up-to-date and accurate records in the SEVIS database
regarding the foreign students attending the school, and are
required to input accurately when the students have completed
their studies so their immigration status can be terminated.

This computer database is the method through which immigration
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officials are able to determine which foreign individuals are in
the United States attending school.

f. Based on my training and experience, as well as the
training and experience of other law enforcement agents with whom
I have discussed this matter, I am aware that some foreigners who
have entered the United States with non-immigrant visas, in an
attempt to remain in the United States beyond the authorized
period, attempt to circumvent United States immigration laws by
filing fraudulent immigration applications in which they make
material misrepresentations. I am further aware that there are
some educational institutions that assist the efforts of some
foreign students to stay in the United States and, in exchange
for payment, provide false information in the SEVIS database to

permit them to stay.

B. Summary Of Investigation Of California Union University And
SAMUEL OH
6. In or around April 2009, DHS-ICE received information

that individuals within the Central District of California,
including SAMUEL CHAI CHO OH (“SAMUEL OH”) and others, were
involved in a large-scale immigration fraud scheme. The
investigation has revealed that SAMUEL OH is the president and
registered owner of California Union University (“CUU”), located
at 905 South Euclid Street, Fullerton, California 92832. SAMUEL

OH is also a pastor who uses CUU’s premises for church services.
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7. Until recently, the Department of Homeland Security had
approved CUU as a school that foreign students may attend, and a
school through which foreign students may obtain an F-1 visa in
order to attend. The ICE Student and Exchange Visitor Program
(SEVP) terminated that authority on or about October 18, 2009, as
a result of the investigation referenced herein.

8. As detailed below, the investigation has revealed that
SAMUEL OH and others recruits students to CUU through various
means, including advertising and third-party recruiting. SAMUEL
OH and others have used CUU as a vehicle through which they have
fraudulently issued Form I-20s for ineligible foreign citizens,
and have kept ineligible students enrolled for extended periods
of time, even though they were not attending classes, in exchange
for payment. Investigation has revealed that OH and others
working with him at CUU have fraudulently prepared and issued
Form I-20's since in or around May 1999 until CUU’s authority to
issue Form I-20's was terminated on or about October 18, 2009.

C. March 26, 2009: ICE’s Unannounced Compliance Check On CUU

And Interview Of SAMUEL OH

9. On or about July 21, 2009, I reviewed reports created
by Dong C. Shin (“D.C. Shin”), who is a case analyst with the ICE
Student Exchange Visitor Program (SEVP) in Washington, D.C. The
following paragraphs in this sub-section of the affidavit

summarize facts noted in D.C. Shin’s reports.
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10. On or about March 26, 2009, at approximately 10:50
a.m., the compliance team of the SEVP made an unannounced site
visit to CUU. The SEVP compliance team was accompanied by two
ICE Special Agents from the Los Angeles office, namely, SAs
Michael Ou and Jason Canty. The designated school official
(DSO), SAMUEL OH, was not at the school at the time of arrival
and had to be called in by his staff.

11. The SEVP team took a tour of the campus while waiting
for SAMUEL OH. The school building is primarily used as a
church. Fourteen classrooms were observed, most of which were
empty since the school was not in session at the time of the
visit. Two classrooms were in session, one ESL and one computer
class, but these classes were associated with the church and not
CUU. No recent informational flyers could be found at the
school, and the schedule on the bulletin was from the year 2007.
During the site visit, members of the SEVP team observed what
appeared to be various business records of CUU.

12. SAMUEL OH arrived at CUU within 20 minutes of the
compliance team’s arrival. Members of the SEVP compliance team
interviewed SAMUEL OH in the main hallway located in front of the
main office. Because SAMUEL OH could not speak English fluently,
analyst D.C. Shin translated (Korean and English) to facilitate
the interview. OH confirmed that the school had over 300 active

students. When the SEVP team requested the course schedules from
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SAMUEL OH, he could only produce computer & ESL course schedules.
CUU is authorized by DHS to issue Form I-20s for the following
academic courses: pastor ministry, religious education, biblical
studies, Christian education, English as a Second Language (ESL),
Test for English Foreign Language (TOEFL), and Oriental Medicine.

13. SAMUEL OH admitted that the CUU attendance policy is
not very strict, and it is up to the individual instructors to
take attendance. CUU did not have complete student attendance
records. When SAMUEL OH was asked about recruiting, he claimed
that he travels to Korea and speaks to other pastors about his
school (CUU), and they refer students to him.

14. After talking for a time in the hallway, Analyst D.C.
Shin, SEVP Adjudicator Quinton Eaton, and SAs Ou and Canty spoke
with SAMUEL OH in his office. SAMUEL OH admitted that 75% of his
300 students don’t always attend class, and only about 50
students show up each day. SAMUEL OH also admitted that he
allows the students to miss class because they have financial
difficulty in paying the CUU tuition. At the conclusion of the
interview, SAMUEL OH said he would transfer out all the students
that have not been meeting the attendance requirements.

D. Interview With Reporting Party

15. On June 16, 2009, I met with a cooperating source
("CS”) who had relevant information about SAMUEL OH and other

persons affiliated with CUU and a third-party, JENNIFER KIM, who
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referred alien immigrants to CUU so the aliens could obtain Form
I-20's from CUU in support of the aliens’ academic-based F-1
visas. During this interview, I learned the information set
forth in the following paragraphs in this section.

16. The CS met SAMUEL OH about five years ago at Union
Church, where SAMUEL OH was the pastor. The CS learned that
SAMUEL OH was the owner of CUU and that he collected fees from
students who were not required to attend school. The CS said
SAMUEL OH and his staff of four to five people forge signatures
and falsify financial documents in order to obtain F-1 student
and R-1 religious worker visas.

17. The CS said SAMUEL OH has connections at Korean
banks in the Los Angeles area and is in frequent contact with
them in order to assist with his business. The CS stated that
SAMUEL OH and his staff produce fake degrees and certificates
(in-house) for various educational programs offered at CUU. The
CS said 95 percent of SAMUEL OH’s students are transfers from
other schools and the remaining five percent are new applicants.
The CS stated that SAMUEL OH maintains all of the student files
at CUU in their administrative offices.

18. The CS said SAMUEL OH works in connection with
JENNIFER KIM, who refers aliens as “students” to CUU. OH, on
behalf of CUU, and JENNIFER KIM split the proceeds from the money

paid by the students to CUU. JENNIFER KIM recruits most of the

10
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students and then refers them to SAMUEL OH for issuance of the
Form I-20. The CS stated that the fee is negotiable and that
most students pay approximately $2,000 for one year and
approximately $3,000 for two years. SAMUEL OH offers lower rates
of approximately $600 per person for family package deals. The
CS said SAMUEL OH receives payment via personal checks from
Korean students throughout the United States and that this
information could be verified through SAMUEL OH’s bank records.
The CS said SAMUEL OH collects approximately $40,000 to $50,000
per month in fees. The CS said that if the CUU students request
to transfer from CUU, SAMUEL OH threatens to cancel their F-1
visas and I-20s.

19. During the interview, the CS produced a copy of
the “Korean Daily” newspaper dated June 16, 2009. 1In the
classified section, the CS found a CUU advertisement offering
courses relating to the following certificates and courses: ESL,
TOEFL, CPA, martial arts, nursing, hotel business, and computer
multi-media. The top of the advertisement notes that CUU issues
SEVIS Form I-20s as a service for students. The CS reiterated
that no classes are taught at CUU and that the school is a fraud.

20. The CS was shown two photographic line-ups (six~packs)
each containing six photographs. The first line-up contained six
Asian males all with similar appearances. The CS was asked if

he/she recognized any of the photographs. The CS immediately

11
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recognized photo #5 as that of SAMUEL OH. The CS was then shown
a line-up of six Asian females all with similar appearances. The
CS immediately recognized photo #4 as that of SAMUEL OH’s
girlfriend, EUN YOUNG LEE. The CS stated that EUN YOUNG LEE is
the vice president at CUU and that she assists SAMUEL OH with the
preparation of the students’ fraudulent document packages.

E. Interviews With Claimed “Students” And Witnesses

1. JAE HO HAN

21. On or about July 10, 2009, I interviewed a witness with
the initials JAE HO HAN (“J. HAN”). J. HAN self-surrendered to
ICE agents (for immigration violations), and later agreed to
cooperate with the ICE investigation. J. HAN was read his
Miranda rights in his native Korean language and signed a waiver
agreeing to talk to ICE agents without a lawyer present. J. HAN
produced several Form I-20s indicating that he had been enrolled
at CUU off and on since 1999 and had studied ESL and Computer
Science. During this interview, I learned the following:

22. J. HAN said he entered the United States as a tourist
(B-2 visa) in 1998. A short time later, J. HAN responded to a
Los Angeles newspaper advertisement for Total Consulting Service
(TCS). J. HAN called the number and spoke to JENNIFER KIM about
changing his immigration status from B-2 tourist to F-1 student
so that he and his family could stay legally in the United

States. Over a period of several years, JENNIFER KIM charged J.

12
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HAN $2,400 per year to issue fraudulent I-20s that indicated he
was enrolled at various schools in Los Angeles and Orange County,
namely CUU.

23. J. HAN said he and his wife, Jung Hee HAN, would
obtain the I-20 and other paperwork in the mail or at the TCS
office located at 3580 Wilshire Blvd. Suite 910, Los Angeles,
California 90010. J. HAN’s wife would send JENNIFER KIM a
personal check for $1200 every six months until 2007 when they
stopped paying. J. HAN said JENNIFER KIM would periodically call
their home to remind them the payment was due. If the payment
was past due, JENNIFER KIM would threaten to cancel J. HAN’s visa
and I-20.

24. J. HAN said he never attended CUU or any school in the
United States. He said he had to continue paying the fee to
JENNIFER KIM in order to keep legal immigration status. During
the interview, J. HAN’s wife (JUNG HEE HAN) provided many
documents and letters with TCS letterhead and JENNIFER KIM’s
signature.

2. WON HO LEE

25. On or about July 13, 2009, I interviewed a witness
named WON HO LEE (“W. LEE”). W. LEE was initially arrested for
immigration violations, and he later agreed to cooperate with the
ICE investigation. W. LEE was read his Miranda rights in his

native Korean language and signed a waiver agreeing to talk to

13
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ICE agents without a lawyer present. During this interview, I
learned the following:

26. W. LEE entered the United States in 2001 as a tourist
(B-2 visa) and later changed status to investor (E-2 visa). W.
LEE said he paid a man named WON SUP CHOI $8,500 for the E-2 and
that the entire package was “probably fraudulent” since he was
not involved with any investment in the United States. After the
E-2 visa expired, W. LEE needed legal immigration status and
found a woman named “Judy” through the previous contact, WON SUP
CHOI. Judy was located at 3450 Wilshire Blvd. Suite 560, Los
Angeles, California 90010.

27. W. LEE visited Judy in October 2008, and he paid her
$1500 in order to change his status from E-2 investor to F-1
student at CUU. Judy told W. LEE that she would take care of all
the paperwork but still asked him to sign an attendance sheet for
CUU. W. LEE confirmed that he signed the CUU attendance sheet at
Judy’s office in Los Angeles but that he never attended CUU in
Fullerton. W. LEE said he never attended CUU and did not know of
anyone at CUU.

28. W. LEE said that Judy’s office was allegedly a school
but he never saw students attending class at the location. W. LEE
said he did observe classrooms with chairs and chalkboards, but

no students or teachers.

14
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3. YOUNG RIM SHIN

29. On or about July 16, 2009, I interviewed a witness
named YOUNG RIM SHIN (“Y. SHIN”). Y. SHIN was initially arrested
for immigration violations, and later agreed to cooperate with
the ICE investigation. Y. SHIN was read her Miranda rights in
her native Korean language and signed a waiver agreeing to talk
to ICE agents without a lawyer present. According to the SEVIS
database, Y. SHIN is active and registered as an F-1 student at
CUU. The SEVIS database shows that Y. SHIN is enrolled in the
Computer and Information Sciences program which commenced
September 4, 2007, and ends August 31, 2009. During this
interview, I learned the following:

30. Y. SHIN said she entered the United States as a visitor
(B-2 visa) in 2004 and later changed status to F-1 student. Y.
SHIN said she met CUU President SAMUEL OH in 2007 through Pastor
Min at Living Lights Church in La Habra, California. Y. SHIN
said SAMUEL OH charged her $2,400 per year to maintain her I-20
for CUU from 2007 through 2009. Y. SHIN agreed that her I-20
indicates she studies Computer and Information Sciences at cuu,
but Y. SHIN admitted that she never attended any classes at CUU.
Y. SHIN stated that SAMUEL OH told her to “study at home on-

line.”

15
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31. Y. SHIN was shown two photographic line-ups and
positively identified SAMUEL OH and his girlfriend, EUN LEE, as
the CUU president and vice president, respectively.

4. KYUNG CHUL CHOI

32. On or about July 20, 2009, I interviewed a witness
named Kyung Chul CHOT (“K. CHOI”). K. CHOI was initially
arrested for immigration violations, and later agreed to
cooperate with the ICE investigation. K. CHOI was read his
Miranda rights in his native Korean language and signed a waiver
agreeing to talk to ICE agents without a lawyer present.
According to the SEVIS database, K. CHOI was previously
registered as an F-1 student at CUU and had completed an English
language program ending June 30, 2008. During this interview, I
learned the following:

33. K. CHOI enrolled at CUU sometime in 2005 after
he transferred from the Business Communications Institute (BCT)
located at 3450 Wilshire Blvd. Suite 507, Los Angeles, California
90010. K. CHOI said he spoke to SAMUEL OH in 2005 and that OH
told K. CHOI it was only necessary to attend CUU if SAMUEL OH
called him in. SAMUEL OH initially charged K. CHOI $2,400 per
year to maintain the I-20 but K. CHOI negotiated with SAMUEL OH
and was able to reduce the fee to $2,000 per year.

34. SAMUEL OH told Kyung K. CHOI that other students do

attend CUU but that he would make an exception so that K. CHOI

16
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would not have to attend clésses. K. CHOI thought this was
strange and that the school was probably a fraud. However, K.
CHOI wanted to keep legal immigration status so that he and his
family could continue to live and work in the United States. K.
CHOI said he never attended CUU and never saw any other students
attending CUU.

35. K. CHOI said that the certificates provided by
CUU are all fraudulent and that K. CHOI’'s certificates were
included in the fee. K. CHOI told SAMUEL OH that he needed a
document to show the South Korean government that his son was
enrolled in an American school. This would eliminate the need
for his son to serve the mandatory two years in the Korean
military. K. CHOI said that SAMUEL OH later provided the
requested document for his son.

36. K. CHOI was shown a photographic line-up and
positively identified SAMUEL OH as being the president of CUU.

37. I have reviewed K. CHOI's Form I-20 signed by SAMUEL
OH under penalty of perjury, dated June 27, 2007. Contrary to
the information provided by K. CHOI, the Form I-20 falsely states
that K. CHOI "has been accepted for a full course of study at
this school” (i.e., CUU), "[t]lhe student is expected to report to
the school no later than July 9, 2007, and complete studies not

later than June 30, 2008." The Form I-20 also falsely states

17



Case 8:09-mj-00530-DUTY Document1l  Filed 12/21/2009 Page 19 of 29

that "the student will be required to pursue a full course of
study as defined by 8 C.F.R. 214.2(f) (6)."

5. WOO SUK CHOI

38. On or about July 20, 2009, I interviewed a witness
named WOO SUK CHOI (“W. CHOI”). W. CHOI is the adult son of K.
CHOI (referenced above). W. CHOI was initially arrested for
immigration violations and later agreed to cooperate with the ICE
investigation. W. CHOI was read his Miranda rights in his native
Korean language and signed a waiver agreeing to talk to ICE
agents without a lawyer present.

39. According to the SEVIS database, W. CHOI is active and
registered as an F-1 student at CUU. The SEVIS database shows
that W. CHOI is enrolled in the Computer and Information Sciences
program which commenced April 6, 2009 and ends March 13, 2010.

40. During this interview, I learned the following: W.
CHOI said the last time he attended school was at Harper
Community College (Chicago) in 2003. W. CHOI said he had never
attended CUU and that his father (K. CHOI) was handling the
documents. W. CHOI thought that the school was fraudulent, but
he explained that he needed to keep his legal immigration status.

6. YEUN GUN YOUN

41. On or about July 21, 2009, I interviewed a witness
named YEUN GUN YOUN (“JUSTIN”). According to the ICE SEVIS

database, JUSTIN is active and registered as an F-1 student at
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CUU. The SEVIS database indicates that JUSTIN is enrolled in the
Theological Studies program which commenced February 2, 2009 and
ends January 31, 2011. During this interview, I learned the
following:

42. Sometime in late 2008, JUSTIN’s mother, Heun Ja YOUN
("H. YOUN”), learned of SAMUEL OH through her friend at church.
In February of 2009, H. YOUN went to CUU to meet with SAMUEL OH
and discussed how he could help her son obtain legal immigration
status. SAMUEL OH told her the cost would be $3000 per year to
obtain an I-20 for her son. In March of 2009, H. YOUN paid
SAMUEL OH $1000 and then made two more $1000 payments to SAMUEL
OH in the months following.

43. JUSTIN said he never attended CUU and that the school
is likely a fraud because he never saw students at the school.
JUSTIN said that SAMUEL OH provided him with a compact disc and
told him to “study at home.” JUSTIN said his family is aware of
the CUU fraud, but they keep it a secret because they feel
shameful.

7. BONG SOO KANG

44. On or about July 22, 2009, I interviewed a witness
named Bong Soo KANG (“B. KANG”). According to the ICE SEVIS
database, B. KANG is active and registered as an F-1 student at
CUU. The SEVIS database shows that B. KANG is enrolled in a

Master’s Program for Theological Studies which commenced January
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5, 2009 and ends December 31, 2011. During this interview, I
learned the following:

45, B. KANG said he entered the United States in 2004 as
an F-1 student at the University of North Carolina. Six months
later, he transferred to Los Angeles and attended various schools
over the next four years.

46, In January of 2009, B. KANG responded to a CUU
advertisement in the Korean Daily newspaper. B. KANG met with
SAMUEL OH at CUU and discussed the fee and process for the I-20.
SAMUEL OH told B. KANG that the fee would be $2,400 for one year.
B. KANG paid SAMUEL OH the first payment with a $1000 check and
the final payment of $1,400 in cash. SAMUEL OH said B. KANG
could obtain a Master’s Degree after two years but he was not
required to attend class or take any tests.

47. B. KANG stated that CUU is probably fraudulent because
he never saw other students and that SAMUEL OH never discussed
any of the subjects with him. B. KANG said he never attended
class at CUU but that he did visit a friend at CUU, namely, Young
JANG, who works for SAMUEL OH.

8. IN YOUNG KIM and DAE WOOK KIM

48. On or about July 23, 2009, I interviewed witnesses
IN YOUNG KIM (“I. KIM”) and her adult son DAE WOOK KIM (“D.
KIM”). According to the ICE SEVIS database, D. KIM was

registered as an F-1 student at CUU from September 8, 2008 to
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August 31, 2009, but he was deactivated when the U.S. Citizenship
and Immigration Service denied his change of status due to a
fraudulent filing. The SEVIS database shows that D. KIM was
enrolled in an English language program. During this interview,
I learned the following:

49. I. KIM said she needed to find a way to keep her
son in public school while at the same time maintaining legal
immigration status. Sometime in 2006, I. KIM saw an
advertisement for Essence Educational Center (EEC) in the Korean
Daily newspaper. She called the number listed and spoke with a
woman named Judy Yoo. They discussed the process of obtaining an
F-1 student visa and Judy Yoo told I. KIM she needed to submit
copies of their bank statements and passports in order to obtain
the F-1 visa for her son. Judy Yoo told I. KIM that the cost for
the process would be $4500. 1In January of 2007, I. KIM paid EEC
$4500 with a personal check.

50. During the interview, I. KIM and D. KIM were shown an
I-20 completed by SAMUEL OH at CUU. The I-20 indicated that her
son, “Dae Wook KIM” had attended English language studies at CUU
from September 8, 2008 to August 31, 2009. The I-20 was signed
by both SAMUEL OH and Dae Wook KIM. I. KIM and D. KIM said they
had never seen the I-20 and that the signature was likely forged.
D. KIM said he never attended CUU and had only attended Beckman

High School in Tustin, California.
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51. I. KIM admitted that she knew it was wrong and illegal
for her son to attend public school when, according to SEVIS, he
was enrolled at CUU.

9. Interview of INTERPOL Fugitive KUY NAM KO

52. On or about August 13, 2009, ICE agents arrested a
witness named KUY NAM KO ("KO"), who is a Korean national born on
October 10, 1957. KO was in the United States in violation of
immigration law and is also an INTERPOL fugitive wanted by the
South Korean government for an embezzlement scheme in 2003. 1In
August of 2003, KO fled to the United States allegedly with the
proceeds (approximately $650,000) from the sale of a church
building in Seoul, Korea. In July of 2008, the South Korean
government issued an arrest warrant for KO charging him with
embezzlement. Subsequent to his arrest, I interviewed KO
regarding his connection to SAMUEL OH and CUU. KO was given his
Miranda warning in his native Korean language and waived his
right to representation. During this interview, I learned the
following:

53. KO met Samuel OH in 2007 through a close friend,
Pastor Kwang Hoon JUN, who resides in South Korea. In 2008, KO
worked as a pastor at SAMUEL OH’s church located within the CUU
building at 905 South Euclid Street, Fullerton, California.
SAMUEL OH allegedly became upset that KO’s congregation was

growing and eventually told KO to leave. KO said that the church
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has school-like classrooms throughout the building and also has a
sign in the parking lot that reads “California Union

University.” However, KO said he never saw any students or
teachers in the building “so it must be a fraud.” KO said his
son (Yo Sep KO) was enrolled at CUU but was then transferred to
another school after Samuel OH asked KO to leave the church.

When asked if KO’'s son actually attended classes at CUU, KO would
not answer. KO reiterated that he never saw students or teachers
at CUU and that the school must be a fraud.

10. HAN SUNG KIM

54. On or about August 28, 2009, ICE agents interviewed a
witness named HAN SUNG KIM (“HAN KIM”), who is a Korean national
born on June 2, 1966. Based on my review of Hanmi bank records
for SAMUEL OH, EUN LEE, and Christina Jakyung KIM's business
checking account, I discovered two (2) personal checks from HAN
KIM that were made out to "California Union University." The
first check was dated February 23, 2009 and in the amount of
$500. The second check was dated March 12, 2009 and in the
amount of $2,500.

55. I questioned HAN KIM about these checks and he
admitted that he paid SAMUEL OH a total of $3,000 in exchange for
a fraudulent masters degree in Business Administration (MBA).
(It should be noted that HAN KIM has advised that he did not pay

money to CUU for an I-20.) KIM said he never attended school at
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CUU, and he never saw other students or teachers at CUU when he
met with SAMUEL OH at CUU on two (2) occasions. HAN KIM said
that, after he paid the $3,000, SAMUEL OH asked him for an
additional $3,000, but HAN KIM refused to pay and did not have
any more communication with SAMUEL OH.

11. SUK HEE MOON

56. On or about September 1, 2009, I contacted a possible
witness named SUK HEE MOON ("MOON"), who is a Korean national
born on March 23, 1955. Based on my review of Hanmi bank records
for EUN LEE's personal checking account, I discovered three (3)
personal checks from MOON that were made out to "Eun Y. Lee" each
in the amount of $2,300. The checks were dated February 27,
2008, March 28, 2009 and June 5, 2009. I was able to contact
MOON based on a telephone number he provided on his personal
checks. I identified myself as a federal agent with Immigration
and Customs Enforcement and asked to meet with him as soon as
possible. MOON told me I could come to his residence and
provided his address of 9302 Marietta Avenue, Garden Grove, CA
92841. (Based on various records, including subpoenaed bank
records, SAMUEL OH’s driver’s license, and EUN LEE’s most recent
U.S. passport application, as well as commercial database
queries, I believe that EUN LEE owns the residence at 9302
Marietta Avenue, and she and SAMUEL OH used to reside there.) I

then told MOON that I would call back in a few minutes. When I
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called MOON a second time, a female answered the phone and said
MOON was currently packing his things and moving out of the
residence.

57. On or about September 2, 2009, I queried DHS databases
and determined that SUK HEE MOON is in the United States in
violation of immigration law. On October 21, 2009, I arrested
SUK HEE MOON for violation of immigration laws and later released
him on his own recognizance pending immigration proceedings.

F. Execution Of Search Warrant On CUU’s Premises

58. On October 6, 2009, ICE agents executed a federal
search warrant at California Union University (CUU), in
Fullerton, California, and a federal civil seizure warrant for
one (1) account at Hanmi Bank in Irvine, California. Agents
seized 25 boxes of evidence, approximately $17,000 in currency
located at the school, and $202,000 from one Hanmi Bank account.
Agents discovered the following significant items and documents:

(a) Over 300 CUU student files were located in room # 206
of the school. SAMUEL OH claimed not to have a key for the room
and further stated to agents that it belonged to a sub-leased
computer class. Agents later found the key to room # 206 in
SAMUEL OH's desk. Many of the student files matched those who
had been previously arrested and interviewed regarding the fraud

at CUU. The files also contained counterfeit bank statements and
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forged student signatures on numerous CUU applications and
documents.

(b) Boilerplate English placement tests were found in two
folders. One folder was labeled "ENG TEST Over 60" and another
"ENG TEST under 60."

(c) Several pages of what appeared to be someone practicing
how to forge signatures of various students, Samuel Oh, Dr.
Jennifer Soger, and Dr. Dan Goldberg. {(On November 12, 2009,
Timothy Oh confirmed the existence of these documents during an
interview.)

(d) California Union University financial statement from
2007. Expenses indicate $81,970 for "lecture fees."

(e} Korean Center Church financial statement from 2008.
Korean Center Church is listed as an affiliate of California
Union University and shows $134,432 for education expenses.

(f) Folder containing CUU diplomas for six (6) middle
eastern students. Students were from Pakistan, Jordan and United
Arab Emirates, and the diplomas all indicated a graduation day at
CUU on June 17, 2002. Four (4) of the students received a Master
of Business Administration (MBA) and two (2) received a Bachelor
of Business Administration. The diplomas were all signed by
"Daniel Goldberg" who is listed as "President of the University."”
An October 2009 interview with Daniel Goldberg revealed that he

never held any position in the office at CUU and certainly not
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the position of president. However, Daniel Goldberg claimed that
he taught religious classes at CUU many years ago but was paid on
a contract basis.

(g) Numerous school-related documents (applications,
letters, transcripts) signed by "Dr. Jennifer Soger" listed as
Registrar of CUU and "Dr. Daniel Goldberg" listed as Dean of
Academics. ICE agents conducted queries and were able to locate
one (1) Dr. Jennifer Soger, who is a psychologist in Florida and
claims no knowledge or affiliation to CUU. An interview with Dr.
Daniel Goldberg in October 2009 indicated that he never held the
position of Dean of Academics at CUU.

(h) Numerous Immigration Applications to Change or Extend
Status as a Non-Immigrant (I-539) filed on behalf of aliens
illegally present in the U.S. One of the aliens - Bong Soo KANG,
was interviewed by ICE agents and confirmed the fraud at CUU.

(1) A 2003 letter from CUU to an Orange County Sheriff's
office regarding a $466,311 wage garnishment against Samuel OH.
The letter states that Chai Cho Oh (SAMUEL OH) is no longer
receiving compensation from CUU due to the SEVIS restrictions by
INS (at that time). "We are unable to issue I-20 form and
recruit foreign students. As such, our organization is currently
in severe financial difficulty and many of our staff members are
no longer with us." The last paragraph states "Chai Cho Oh

remains as a voluntary member, without pay, and if compensation
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to him should resume, we will notify your office." Signed by Dr.
Monica Eun Young Lee, Financial Officer, California Union
University.

(J) Numerous copies of imprints from what appears to be an
altered notary public stamp. The last digit on the year appears
to be altered from a legitimate 2002 to an altered 2009.

(k) Counterfeit college transcript showing a cut and pasted

"Chong Shin Institute of Arts" from Seoul, Korea.

CONCLUSION
59. Based on all of the foregoing facts, and my training
and experience, I submit that there is probable cause to believe
that SAMUEL OH and other persons associated with CUU have

committed the SUBJECT FEDERAL OFFENSE.

SV 4/ =
MARK SPEIDET

SPECIAL AGENT, UNITED STATES
IMMIGRATION & CUSTOMS ENFORCEMENT

Sworn and Subscribed tc before me
this ﬁ ay of December 2009.

L. GOLDMAN
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE
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